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)
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)
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)
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)




)
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)

DECISION


We grant the motion for summary determination filed by the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”).  Kenneth L. Sheppard, d/b/a Sheppard Backhoe and Trucking (“Sheppard”) committed four violations of the laws of Missouri and the United States.
Procedure


On September 27, 2007, the MHTC filed a complaint alleging that Sheppard violated state and federal laws.  Sheppard was served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by personal service on November 21, 2007.  Sheppard filed no answer to the complaint.  On February 4, 2008, the MHTC filed a motion for summary determination.  Our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.440(3) provides that we may decide this case 
without a hearing if the MHTC establishes facts that (a) Sheppard does not dispute and (b) entitle the MHTC to a favorable decision.


We gave Sheppard until February 19, 2008, to respond to the motion, but he did not.  Therefore, the following facts as established by the MHTC's exhibits are undisputed.

Findings of Fact

1. Sheppard has his principal place of business at 33 Special K Drive, Poplar Bluff, Missouri.  Sheppard operates a 1980 Peterbilt truck (“the truck”), which is a commercial motor vehicle with a gross vehicle weight (“GVW”) rating of 54,000.
2. On September 27, 2005, Sheppard allowed his employee Joseph Glasstetter to use the truck in intrastate commerce to transport for compensation base stone from Williamsville Stone Company in Poplar Bluff, Missouri, to Keith Brogie in Poplar Bluff, Missouri, before Sheppard had received a pre-employment controlled substance test for Glasstetter.
3. On October 6, 2005, Sheppard allowed Glasstetter to use the truck in intrastate commerce to transport for compensation open stone from Williamsville Stone Company in Poplar Bluff, Missouri, to Frank Sesonegood in Poplar Bluff, Missouri:  (1) before Sheppard implemented a random alcohol and/or controlled substance testing program; and (2) while failing to maintain Glasstetter’s medical examiner’s certification and responses to inquiries concerning his driving record in his driver qualification file.
Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear this complaint.
  The MHTC has the burden of proving its case by “clear and satisfactory evidence.”
  The MHTC established that Sheppard was a “motor 
carrier” whose employee drove a “commercial motor vehicle” under 49 CFR 390.5,
 which provides:
Commercial motor vehicle means any self-propelled or towed motor vehicle used on a highway in interstate commerce to transport passengers or property when the vehicle --

(1) Has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross combination weight rating, or gross vehicle weight or gross combination weight of 4,536 kg (10,001 pounds) or more, whichever is greater[.]

*   *   *

For-hire motor carrier means a person engaged in the transportation of goods or passengers for compensation.
*   *   *

Motor carrier means a for-hire carrier or a private motor carrier.

The MHTC alleges that Sheppard violated state and federal laws as follows.  In its motion for summary determination, the MHTC also argues that Sheppard violated § 390.201, RSMo 2000, but this was not pled in the complaint, so we do not consider it.

Count I


The MHTC asks us to find that Sheppard violated 49 CFR § 382.301:

(a) Prior to the first time a driver performs safety-sensitive functions for an employer, the driver shall undergo testing for controlled substances as a condition prior to being used, unless the employer uses the exception in paragraph (b) of this section.  No employer shall allow a driver, who the employer intends to hire or use, to perform safety-sensitive functions unless the employer has received a controlled substances test result from the MRO or C/TPA indicating a verified negative test result for that driver[;]
and violated § 622.550, RSMo 2000:

 . . . the division of motor carrier and railroad safety, and other authorized peace officers of this state and any civil subdivision of this state, may enforce any of the provisions of Parts 350 through 
399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state; except that the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety shall be authorized to enforce those regulations only within the terminals of motor carriers and private carriers by motor vehicle.

On September 27, 2005, Sheppard allowed Glasstetter to operate a commercial motor vehicle before he had received Glasstetter’s verified negative controlled substance test.  Sheppard violated 49 CFR § 382.301(a).  Section 622.550, RSMo 2000, sets forth the MHTC’s authority to enforce federal regulations, but does not set forth conduct that can be violated.  Sheppard did not violate § 622.550, RSMo 2000.
Count II


The MHTC asks us to find violations of § 622.550 and 49 CFR § 382.305:

(a) Every employer shall comply with the requirements of this section.  Every driver shall submit to random alcohol and controlled substance testing as required in this section.

On October 6, 2005, Sheppard allowed Glasstetter to operate a commercial motor vehicle before he had implemented an alcohol and controlled substance testing program.  Sheppard violated 49 CFR § 382.301(a).  Sheppard did not violate § 622.550, RSMo 2000.
Counts III and IV

The MHTC asks us to find that Sheppard violated 49 CFR § 391.51:

(b) The qualification file for a driver must include:

*   *   *

(2) A copy of the response by each State agency concerning a driver’s driving record pursuant to § 391.23(a)(1);

*   *   *

(7) The medical examiner’s certificate of his/her physical qualification to drive a commercial motor vehicle as required by 
§ 391.43(f) or a legible photographic copy of the certificate;
and violated § 307.400:

1.  It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle as defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation. . . .

On October 6, 2005, Sheppard allowed Glasstetter to operate a commercial motor vehicle while failing to maintain Glasstetter’s medical examiner’s certification and responses to inquiries concerning his driving record in his driver qualification file.


We find that Sheppard violated 49 CSR § 391.51(b)(2) and (7).  Because the vehicle was not equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Sheppard violated § 307.400.
Summary


Sheppard violated 49 CFR § 382.301(a), 49 CFR 382.305(a), and 49 CFR § 391.51(b)(2) and (7).  By his violations of the latter federal regulation, he violated § 307.400.  Sheppard did not violate § 622.550, RSMo 2000.  We cancel the hearing.

SO ORDERED on February 29, 2008.



________________________________



NIMROD T. CHAPEL, JR.


Commissioner

	�ITT Commercial Fin. Corp. v. Mid-Am. Marine Supply Corp., 854 S.W.2d 371, 380-82 (Mo. banc 1993).


	�The MHTC also asks that we deem the allegations in its complaint admitted because Sheppard never responded to it.  We need not rule on this because the MHTC proved its case through evidence presented.


	�Section 621.040; 622.320, RSMo 2000.  Statutory references are to RSMo Supp. 2007 unless otherwise noted.


	�Section 622.350.


	�Recent amendments to this regulation do not affect these definitions.


	�Sander v. Missouri Real Estate Comm’n, 710 S.W.2d 896, 901 (Mo. App., E.D. 1986).
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